
AGENDA



 
424 E FM 6 NEVADA, TX 75173 | 972-853-0027 

 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

 

Tuesday, June 4, 2024 
7:00PM at City Hall 

 
1. Call to Order and Declaration of Quorum- Time:  

 
2. Invocation. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance to the United States of America - 

I pledge Allegiance to the flag, of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which 
it stands, one nation under God, indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for all.                                                                                                       

 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag -  
Honor the Texas flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible. 

 
4. Public Comment –  

 
Citizens are invited to address the City Council with public comments. Comments regarding items for 
which notice has not been given will be limited to three minutes, prior to discussion of agenda items, and 
Council responses shall be in accordance with Sec. 551.042 of the Texas Government Code. Comments 
regarding an item on the agenda may be given before or during discussion of that item. An intentional act 
intended to disrupt a Government meeting is prohibited. 
 
NOTE: The City of Nevada, Texas, City Council meets regularly on the first and third Tuesday of each 
month at 7:00 P.M. The Council adheres to the printed Agenda for official action. Any individuals desiring 
official action on a matter should submit a request for the item to be considered for inclusion on a future 
Agenda to the office of the City Secretary no later than fourteen (14) days prior to the Council Meeting. 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

Council Member Place 4 – Clayton Laughter 
Council Member Place 5 – Frank Hudson 

Council Member Place 1 – Mike Laye 
Council Member Place 2 – Donald Deering 
Council Member Place 3 – Kerrie Longoria 

Mayor – Benito Ponce                            
 

 



 
5.  Reports: 

 
a. City Secretary Report  
b. City Attorney Report 
c. Code Enforcement Report   
d. P&Z Report 
e. EDC Report 
f. Financial Report (2nd Council Meeting)  
g. Mayor Pro Tem Report  
h. Mayor’s Report/Status 
i. NVFD Report (2nd Council Meeting) 

  

 
6. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes – May 21, 2024 

 
7. Discuss and consider action on the upcoming budget process. 

Summary: Finance Director, Ray Smith, is here to speak on this agenda item and provide insight 
and recommendations into the budget and the process. 
 

8. Discuss and take any appropriate action on the variance request submitted to the City of 
Nevada.  
Summary: A fence variance was submitted by the homeowner at 124 West Street, Nevada TX 
75173. 

 
9. Discuss any updates on the City Hall Renovation Project. 

Summary: The oversight committee consists of Council Member Laughter, Council Member 
Deering, and P&Z Commissioner Little.  
  

10. Discuss and consider action on the adoption of Ordinance No. O060424 (Schedule of Fees). 
Summary: An ordinance of the city of Nevada, Collin County, Texas, adopting the Nevada fee 
schedule; establishing fees, costs and expenses charged by the city of Nevada; adopting penalty 
rates established by the state of Texas; and adopting a savings clause, a repealer clause, and a 
penalty clause. 
 

 

REPORTS 

REGULAR AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 



 

 
Future Agenda Items 
Future agenda items shall be designated by the Mayor. In addition, a motion and a 
second from any two Councilpersons shall be sufficient to add an agenda item for a 
future meeting. Staff and council shall have prior consent of the Mayor to add an 
agenda item for a future meeting.  
1.                                                      6.                                                     11. 
2.                                                      7.                                                     12. 
3.                                                      8.                                                     13. 
4.                                                      9.                                                     14. 
5.                                                     10.                                                    15.   
 
 
Executive Session - Time: ______ 
 
Govt. Code 551.071  Legal advice, regarding obligations, liabilities, possible 
agreements and other legal issues with proposed Municipal Utility Districts in the 
Extra Territorial Jurisdiction area of the City. 

 
Regular Session: Reconvene from Executive Session - Time: _____ 

 
If required, take any action deemed necessary as the result of any executive session 
deliberations.  

 
Adjournment / Closing - Time: _____ 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 
 

This meeting will be conducted pursuant to the Texas Government Code Section 551.001 
et seq. At any time during the meeting, the Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive 
session on any of the above-posted agenda items in accordance with the sections 551.071 
[litigation and certain consultation with attorney], 551.072 [acquisition of an interest in real 
property], 551.073 [contract for gift to City], 551.074 [certain personnel deliberations] or 
551.076 [deployment/ implementation of security personnel or devices] 551.087 [deliberation 
regarding economic development negotiations]. 

 
The City of Nevada is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications will be provided upon request. 
Please call the City Secretary at (469) 788-7610 Ext: 102 for information. 
Attendance by Other Elected or Appointed Officials: It is anticipated that members of other 
city boards, commissions and/or committees may attend the meeting in numbers that may 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 



constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions and/or committees. Notice is hereby 
given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a meeting of the other 
boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance. 
The members of the other boards, commissions and/or committees shall not deliberate or 
decide any matters relating to items listed on this agenda and no minutes shall be prepared. 
 

A member or member of the government body holding this meeting may attend via 
videoconference pursuant to the provisions of Tex. Gov’t Code 551.127. In the event that a 
member or members of the government body holding this meeting attends via 
videoconference, a quorum of the government body holding this meeting will be physically 
present at the location identified above. 
 

I certify that the above agenda for this meeting of the City Council of the City of Nevada, 
Texas, was posted on the bulletin board at City Hall, in Nevada, Texas, on Friday, May 31, 
2024, at 5:00 pm pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 
 

 
_________________________________                                                             

 Morgan Kowaleski, City Secretary 



CITY
SECRETARY
REPORT



CITY 
ATTORNEY

REPORT



P&Z
COMMISION
REPORT



NEDC
 REPORT



MAYOR 
PRO TEM’S

REPORT



MAYOR’S 
 REPORT



AGENDA ITEM
#6

Approval of Previous Meeting
Minutes - May 21, 2024



 
424 E FM 6 NEVADA, TX 75173 | 972-853-0027 

 
 

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 
7:00PM at City Hall 

 
 

 

 
1. Call to Order and Declaration of Quorum –  

Time: 7:01 PM 
Mayor Ponce and Council Member Deering were absent.  

 
2. Invocation –  

Mr. Bruce Mathews led the invocation.  
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the United States of America –  
I pledge Allegiance to the flag, of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it 
stands, one nation under God, indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for all.    
Those in attendance pledged allegiance to the United States of America.  

 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag –  
Honor the Texas flag, I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible. 
Those in attendance pledged allegiance to the Texas Flag.  
 

4. Public Comment –  
None.  

 
 
 
 

 

Mayor – Benito Ponce 
                         

 
 

Council Member Place 1 – Mike Laye 
Council Member Place 2 – Donald Deering 
Council Member Place 3 – Kerrie Longoria  

City Staff: 
City Secretary, Morgan Kowaleski 

City Attorney, Jim Shepherd  
 

 

Council Member Place 4 – Clayton Laughter 
Council Member Place 5 – Frank Hudson 

REGULAR MEETING 

Citizens: 
Russell Newton, Bruce Mathews 



2 
 

 
 

5. Reports: 
 

a. City Secretary Report – 
MyGov – Had our kickoff meeting on April 29th and we have been working with MyGov to 
provide them with all the required information for them to build the templates for the permitting, 
online forms, code enforcement, etc.  
 
Revize – Final training with Revize is scheduled for May 28th. After the training is complete the 
website will be turned over to the City for final changes before it goes live.  
 
School openings – CISD has invited the staff & council to attend ribbon cutting for two of their 
new campuses:   
Ellis Elementary – July 18th at 6PM 
Community Trails Middle School – July 22nd at 6PM.  
 
Xtreme Green Event – Our Xtreme Green Event with CWD is scheduled for June 1st, from 8AM 
– 12PM. This event has been advertised on our Facebook page, website, and with flyers. If any 
of the Council members can volunteer their time to help verify addresses, please let me know as 
soon as possible.  

 
b. City Attorney Report –  

N/A 
 

c. Code Enforcement Report –  
The council reviewed an updated Code Enforcement report from Code Enforcement Officer, 
Dennis Wagner.  

 
d. P&Z Report –  

N/A 
 

e. EDC Report –  
N/A 

 
f. Financial Report (2nd Council Meeting) –   

The Council reviewed the monthly Financial Report. Council Member Longoria requested that 
City Secretary Kowaleski verify the current electricity rate.  

 
g. Mayor Pro Tem Report –  

Council Member Longoria provided an update on the status of the tax refunds from the County 
because of the roll back election.  

 
h. Mayor’s Report/Status –  

N/A 
 

e. NVFD Report (2nd Council Meeting) – 
N/A 

 

REPORTS 



3 
 

6. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes – May 7, 2024 – 
Council Member Laye made a motion to approve the minutes as written. Council Member Hudson 
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

  
7. Discuss and take any appropriate action on the variance request submitted to the City of Nevada – 

Council Member Laughter made a motion to table this agenda item until further information could be 
provided to the council. Council Member Longoria seconded the motion. Motion carried with a 3:1 vote.  
IN FAVOR: Longoria, Laughter, Hudson.  
IN OPPOSITION: Laye 
 

8. Discuss and take any appropriate action on amending Ordinance 18-06 (Animal Ordinance) – 
Council Member Laye made a motion to table this agenda item at the recommendation of City Attorney 
Shepherd, until the clarification of new laws pertaining to animal ordinances. Council Member Laughter 
seconded motion. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

9. Discuss and consider action on amending Ordinance No. O052124-A (Schedule of Fees) – 
Council Member Longoria made a motion to table this agenda item until the next city council meeting, 
when a final version of suggested changes can be reviewed for approval. Council Member Laye seconded 
the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

10. Discuss and consider appropriate action on Ordinance O052124-B (Adopting a Tax Rate for 2023 
After the May 4, 2024, Rollback Election) – 
Council Member Laughter made a motion to approve Ordinance 0O52124-B (Adopting a Tax Rate for 
2023 After the May 4th, 2024, Rollback Election.) Council Member Laye seconded the motion. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 

11. Future Agenda Items –  
 

Future agenda items shall be designated by the Mayor. In addition, a motion and a 
second from any two Councilpersons shall be sufficient to add an agenda item for a 
future meeting. Staff and counsel shall have prior consent of the Mayor to add an agenda 
item for a future meeting. 

 
1. Fence Variance  
2. Animal Ordinance 
3. Schedule of Fees 
4. Budget 
5. 
 

 
12. Executive Session – 

N/A 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  

REGULAR AGENDA  



4 
 

13. Regular Session: Reconvene from Executive Session –   
 

14. If required, act on items reviewed in Executive Session – 
 

15. Adjournment/Closing –  
Time: 7:55 PM 

 
 
 
      
 

_____________________________________ 
Benito Ponce, Mayor 

 

 

Attest:  

_______________________________________ 

 Morgan Kowaleski, City Secretary 



AGENDA ITEM
#7

Discuss and consider action on the
upcoming budget process.

SUMMARY: Finance Director, Ray Smith
is here to speak on this agenda item and
provide insight and recomendations into

the budget and the process. 



NO DOCUMENTS



AGENDA ITEM
#8

Discuss and take any appropriate action
on the variance request submitted to the

City of Nevada.

SUMMARY: A fence variance was
submitted by the homeowner at 124

West Street, Nevada TX 75173.



From: Jesus Garcia <jesusgarcia2282@icloud.com>
Sent: Friday, May 24, 2024 4:03 PM
To: Heather Schell <asst.citysecretary@cityofnevadatx.org>
Subject: Re: 124 WEST STREET FENCE

The request for the 6 foot fence is because I have a landscaping company and several trucks with trailers and 
because I would like to make the fence for greater security for my trucks and trailers and as I told you in the 
previous email that I have two puppies I want the caules to have the freedom to swim freely on the property. 
This is the reason I am making the request for said fence, but I feel that since I am Hispanic, they do not want 
to give me permission. I am sorry for having bought it in the city of Nevada. I do not want nor wish to have 
cows on the property
Sent from my iPhone

On May 24, 2024, at 10:32 AM, Heather Schell <asst.citysecretary@cityofnevadatx.org> wrote:

Good morning,

The Fence Variance Requested was tabled at the last meeting held on May 21, 2024.

The council has requested that you provide something in writing outlining why you are requesting 
the fence to be 6ft since you are not able to attend the meeting.

Are your intentions for the fence to be used for livestock?

Also, per the fire department a Knox Box would need to be installed as well.

I can understand if you do not want to move forward with this request.

Please let me know if you have any questions or what you would like to do.

Thank you!

mailto:asst.citysecretary@cityofnevadatx.org
















-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

No additional transfer fees or taxes apply.

Intuit Payments Inc (IPI) processes payments as an agent of the business. Payment processed by IPI constitutes payment to the business and 

satisfies your obligation to pay the business, including in connection with any dispute or case, in law or equity. Money movement services are 

provided by IPI pursuant to IPI’s licenses (NMLS #1098819, www.intuit.com/legal/licenses/payment-licenses/). IPI is located at 2700 Coast 

Avenue, Mountain View, CA 94043, 1-888-536-4801.

City of Nevada, TX

424 E FM
TX
972-853-0027
citysecretary@cityofnevadatx.org

Receipt
Received From
Jesus Arcos-Garcia
124 West Street
Nevada, Texas  75173
United States

Date: 03/13/2024

Reference No:

Invoice Number Invoice Date Due Date Original Amount Balance Payment

1360 03/13/2024 03/20/2024 414.00 414.00 414.00

 

Memo: Paid via QuickBooks Payments: Payment ID MQ0215275758 Amount Credited: $0.00
Total: $414.00



AGENDA ITEM
#9

Discuss any updates to the City Hall
Renovation Project. 

SUMMARY: The oversight committee
consists of Council Member Laughter,

Council Member Deering, and P&Z
Commissioner Little. 



NO DOCUMENTS



AGENDA ITEM
#10

Discuss and consider action on the
adoption of Ordinance No. O060424

(Schedule of Fees)



 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. O060424 

(Adopting Fee Schedule - 06.04.24) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA, TEXAS, ADOPTING THE 
CITY FEE SCHEDULE; ESTABLISHING FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES 
CHARGED BY THE CITY; ADOPTING PENALTY RATES 
ESTABLISHED BY THE STATE OF TEXAS; AND ADOPTING A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE, A REPEALER CLAUSE, AND A PENALTY CLAUSE. 

 
WHEREAS the fees, costs and expenses charged by the CITY of NEVADA should be 

organized, consolidated and in some cases, amended, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEVADA, TEXAS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The fees, charges, penalties, costs and other expenses to be charged by the 

CITY of NEVADA are hereby adopted as set forth in the attached Exhibit A to this ordinance, 

titled NEVADA Fee Schedule. Any such charges heretofore established by ordinance or resolution 

in the CITY of NEVADA which are in conflict with Exhibit A are hereby revoked, and the charges 

set forth herein shall be enforced. 

SECTION 2. That all provisions of the ordinances of the CITY of NEVADA in conflict 

with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other provisions 

of the ordinances of the CITY of NEVADA not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 3. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 

of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not 

affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other than the part 

so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity of this 

Ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Any person, firm, company, partnership, corporation, or association 
 

 
Ordinance No. O06042024 
(Adopting 2024 Fee Schedule) 

 
            Page 1



 
 

 
failing to pay the fees, charges, costs and expenses to the city as required by this ordinance 

for the actions and items listed in Exhibit A in full, and on time, has violated this ordinance and 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined an amount of 

not more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) for each such violation, and each and every day that 

the provisions of this Ordinance are violated shall constitute a separate and distinct offense. 

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 

the publication of the caption, as the law in such cases provides. 

DULY PASSED by the CITY Council of the CITY of NEVADA, Texas, on the 4th  
day of June 2024. 

 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED: 
       
      ________________________________________ 
      Mayor, Benito Ponce 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
City Secretary, Morgan Kowaleski 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________________ 
City Attorney, Jim Shepherd 
 
 
 

 
Ordinance No. O060424 
(Adopting 2024 Fee Schedule) 

 
            Page 2



SF-052124 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 
City of Nevada | 424 E. FM 6 Nevada, TX 75173 | (972)-853-0027 
 

 
 

 

Residential New Construction Fees 
NSFR - Includes BMEP plan review/initial inspection. Any additional fee(s) incurred will be billed separately. 

New Single Family Residential Up to 3500 sqft. $750 + $1.15 / sqft. 
Over 3500 sqft. 0.85 / additional sqft 

New OSSF Permit $600.00 OSSF - Includes plan review/initial inspection 

 
 
 

Residential Trade Permits 
If applicable, the permit fee includes plan review/initial inspection. Any additional fee(s) incurred will be billed separately. 

   

 
Contractor 

Registration 

All subcontractors must be 
registered with the city. 

Electrician/Plumber/Mechanical must be 
registered but are exempt from the fee. 

   
 

$110 

OSSF Modification    $325 
Swimming Pool    $575 

Spa/Hot Tub    $350 
Solar Panel    $400 
Mechanical  TBD  $260 

Electrical  TBD  $260 
Plumbing  TBD  $260 

Roof  TBD  $260 

Flatwork Concrete slab, sidewalk, patio, 
driveway, etc. 

 

 
  

$325 
Foundation Repair    $325 
Fence Permit (BP)    $325 

Residential Remodel 
(Addition) 

(Each trade must pull their own permit) 
Includes Foundation & Roof    

$500 + 0.59/sqft over 120sqft 
Residential Remodel 

(Existing) 
(Each trade must pull their own permit) 

Includes Roof 
 

 
  

$325 + 0.59/sqft over 120sqft. 
Irrigation    $260 

Demolition    $175 
Accessory Building 

(over 120sqft) 
Carport, gazebo, shed, etc.  TBD $325 + 0.59/sqft 

     

All fees must be paid before a permit can be issued. 
The City of Nevada adopted Ordinance #022123 that complies with the 2021 Building Codes and the 2020 National Electrical Code. 

 
PERMIT 

 
PLANS 

REQUIRED? 

ENGINEER 
LETTER 

REQUIRED? 
 

PERMIT FEE 



New & Remodeled Commercial Fees 
Permit fee includes plan review/initial inspection(s). Any additional fee(s) incurred will be billed separately. 

Commercial Building Permit Fees are determined per the "Sqft Construction Costs" table provided each August by 
the International Code Council with a permit fee multiplier of 0.0090 (see table 1) 

Commercial Flatwork $9.00 per 1,000 of valuation 
Certificate of Occupancy $35 Application Fee + $165 due upon approval 

Clean & Show Permit $125 

Sign Permit $175 
Capital Improvement 
Inspection Program 

Calculated using the engineer’s hourly rate for 
review & inspections.  

 

Fire Code Plan Review & Inspection Fees 
Any additional fee(s) incurred will be billed separately. 

 
Fire Code/Sprinkler 
Plan Review 

Perform all requested Fire Code Plan Reviews (Sprinkler and Fire 
Detection/Alarm) at a rate of: 

$300 per page 

 
Fire Code/Sprinkler 

Plan Inspection 

Perform all requested Fire Code Inspections (Sprinkler and Fire 
Detection/Alarm) at a rate of: 
$720 half day (under 4 hours) 
$1080 full day (over 4 hours) 

 

Development Fees – Zoning, Annexation, Plats 
Any additional fee(s) incurred will be billed separately. 

Zoning Change Request $500 + $10/acre 
ETJ Preliminary/Final Plat $500 + $5/lot 

(May also require review by Collin County and be subject to County Fees) 
Preliminary Plat $500 + $5/lot  

+ All Consultant costs 
Final Plat $500 + $5/lot  

+ All Consultant costs 
Replat/Amended Plat $500 + $5/lot 

+ All Consultant costs 
Annexation $500 

Engineering Plans ** $4,000 
Developer Variance Request $400 + All Consultant costs 

Residential Homeowner Variance 
Request 

$75 
(privately owned, single lot) 

 

Miscellaneous  
Any additional fee(s) incurred will be billed separately. 

Same Day Inspection 
(Commercial & Residential) 

 
$200 

Re-inspection 
(Commercial & Residential) 

 
$100  

Unpermitted Work      2x original permit cost 



Online Payment/CC Fee 3.5% 
Special Use Permit $100 

Temporary Use Permit $100 
Vendor Permit $50 
Solicitor Permit $20 

Health Inspection $200 

All feed paid are non-refundable. 

The applicant must pay the actual fee or deposit the estimated fee with the city prior to the city’s engagement of consultants to work on an 
application. Should the actual consultant costs exceed the estimate, the applicant will be required to deposit additional funds with the City before 
work on a project continues. Unused deposit funds will be refunded to an applicant within 60 days of project end. Unpaid fees will result in the 
withholding of all permits. 

 
* All Consultant costs include City Planner, City Engineer, Legal Fees, and any other outside consultant costs incurred by the City. 
** The Engineering Plan Review fee covers up to (2) reviews. Additional reviews will be on an hourly basis according to the rates set by the City’s 
third-party Engineer. 
** The City of Nevada recognizes that professional guidance is necessary when undertaking any land use project including zoning, Board of 
Adjustment applications, or platting. The City will provide a complementary one (1) hour or two (2) half-hour professional consultations with the City 
Planner and/or City Engineer for small projects. Limit of one complementary consultation per property, per year. 

Article VII. – Filing Fees & Charges 
Section 33 In addition to the other fees, the subdivider and/or developer will reimburse the city for all consultant 

fees incurred for re-inspections and review of revised plats after denial or resubmittal. 

Section 35 An inspection fee of 4.5% of the construction cost (capital improvements in the submission that 
can be dedicated to the City) shall be imposed by the fees schedule, unless otherwise amended. 


	CC 052124 Minutes Draft.pdf
	MINUTES
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Tuesday, May 21, 2024
	7:00PM at City Hall


	CC 060424 Agenda Draft.pdf
	CITY OF NEVADA
	AGENDA
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Tuesday, June 4, 2024
	7:00PM at City Hall






